

Journal of the House

EIGHTY-SECOND DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
TOPEKA, KS, Sunday, June 4, 2017, 2:00 p.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Schwab in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Barker, Carlin, Henderson, Highland, Jacobs and Whitmer were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Reps. Carlin and Henderson.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker:

Heavenly Father,
thank You for this day and for how
You watch over each one of us.
Well, it would appear as though our oxen are in the ditch,
for here we are gathered in this place on Your Day, –
Pentecost Day, no less,
working to find solutions to the matters at hand.
Send your Holy Spirit and sweep over this place, please.
Lord, our leaders do need to have some answers soon.
It is difficult because each one is created so differently,
thus have differing ideas and opinions.
In addition, each represent many different types of people
with differing ideas and opinions.
And yet, the task before them is to come up with solutions
that will benefit everyone.
This is something only You can accomplish
and only if they allow You to lead and guide.
So teach them your ways, O Lord,
and give them an understanding heart;
may they remember that the Lord bestows favor and honor;
no good thing does he withhold from those whose walk is blameless.
In Christ's Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Good.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

HB 2431, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, rates, credits, itemized

deductions and determination of Kansas adjusted gross income; sales and compensating use tax, rates, food and food ingredients; property tax, homestead refunds; motor fuels tax, rates; cigarettes, rate of tax; amending K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,110, 79-32,117, 79-32,120, 79-32,138, 79-32,271, 79-3310, 79-3310c, 79-3311, 79-3312, 79-3492b, 79-34,118, 79-34,141, 79-34,142, 79-3602, 79-3603, 79-3620, 79-3703, 79-3710, 79-4501, 79-4502, 79-4508, 79-4509, 79-4511 and 79-4522 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,269, by Committee on Taxation.

HB 2432, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, rates, credits, deductions and determination of Kansas adjusted gross income; amending K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 32-1438, 39-7,132, 40-2246, 65-7107, 74-8206, 74-8304, 74-8316, 74-8401, 79-32,110, 79-32,117, 79-32,119, 79-32,120, 79-32,143, 79-32,143a, 79-32,182b, 79-32,190, 79-32,200, 79-32,201, 79-32,204, 79-32,207, 79-32,210, 79-32,212, 79-32,222, 79-32,271, 79-4501, 79-4502, 79-4508, 79-4509, 79-4511 and 79-4522 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,269, by Committee on Taxation.

HB 2433, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, credits, deductions and rates; amending K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,110, 79-32,117 and 79-32,120 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,269, by Committee on Taxation.

HB 2434, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to rates, credits, deductions and determination of Kansas adjusted gross income; amending K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 74-50,132, 74-50,208, 74-8133, 74-99c09, 79-32,105, 79-32,110, 79-32,117, 79-32,119, 79-32,120, 79-32,121, 79-32,153, 79-32,160a, 79-32,196, 79-32,202a, 79-32,205, 79-32,211, 79-32,258, 79-32,266, 79-32,267 and 79-32,271 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 79-32,269, by Committee on Taxation.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate announced the appointment of Senator Denning to replace Senator Longbine, Senator McGinn to replace Senator Billinger, and Senator Hensley to replace Senator Rogers as conferees on **SB 19**.

INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hineman, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering **HB 2079**.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MADAM PRESIDENT and MR. SPEAKER: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2079** submits the following report:

The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed with Senate Committee of the Whole amendments as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 6 through 34;

On page 2, by striking all in lines 1 through 5; following line 5, by inserting:

"New Section 1. (a) An eligible provider, as described in subsection (b), in addition to the rate of payment that the provider would otherwise receive for medicaid ground emergency medical transportation services, shall receive supplemental medicaid

reimbursement to the extent provided by law.

(b) A provider shall be eligible for supplemental reimbursement only if the provider meets the following conditions during the reporting period:

(1) Provides ground emergency medical transportation services to medicaid beneficiaries;

(2) is a provider that is enrolled as a medicaid provider for the period being claimed; and

(3) is owned or operated by the state, a political subdivision or local government, that employs or contracts with persons or providers who are licensed or permitted to provide emergency medical services in the state of Kansas, including hospitals and private entities to the extent permissible under federal law.

(c) An eligible provider's supplemental reimbursement pursuant to this section shall be calculated and paid as follows:

(1) The supplemental reimbursement to an eligible provider, as described in subsection (b), shall be equal to the amount of federal financial participation received as a result of the claims submitted pursuant to subsection (f)(2);

(2) in no instance may the amount certified pursuant to subsection (e)(1), when combined with the amount received from all other sources of reimbursement from the medicaid program, exceed or be less than 100% of actual costs, as determined pursuant to the medicaid state plan, for ground emergency medical transportation services; and

(3) the supplemental medicaid reimbursement provided by this section must be distributed exclusively to eligible providers under a payment methodology based on ground emergency medical transportation services provided to medicaid beneficiaries by eligible providers on a per-transport basis or other federally permissible basis. The department of health and environment shall obtain approval from the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services for the payment methodology to be utilized, and shall not make any payment pursuant to this section prior to obtaining that approval.

(d) (1) It is the legislature's intent in enacting this section to provide the supplemental reimbursement described in this section without any expenditure from the state general fund. An eligible provider, as a condition of receiving supplemental reimbursement pursuant to this section, shall enter into, and maintain, an agreement with the department for the purposes of implementing this section and reimbursing the department for the costs of administering this section.

(2) The nonfederal share of the supplemental reimbursement submitted to the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services for purposes of claiming federal financial participation shall be paid only with funds from the governmental entities described in subsection (b)(3) and certified to the state as provided in subsection (e).

(e) Participation in the program by an eligible provider described in this section is voluntary. If an applicable governmental entity elects to seek supplemental reimbursement pursuant to this section on behalf of an eligible provider, the governmental entity shall do the following:

(1) Certify, in conformity with the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 433.51, that the claimed expenditures for the ground emergency medical transportation services are eligible for federal financial participation;

(2) provide evidence supporting the certification as specified by the department;

(3) submit data as specified by the department to determine the appropriate amounts to claim as expenditures qualifying for federal financial participation; and

(4) keep, maintain, and have readily retrievable any records specified by the department to fully disclose reimbursement amounts to which the eligible provider is entitled, and any other records required by the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services.

(f) The department shall promptly seek any necessary federal approvals for the implementation of this section. The department may limit the program to those costs that are allowable expenditures under title XIX of the federal social security act, 42 U.S.C. § 1396 et seq. If federal approval is not obtained for implementation of this section, this section shall not be implemented.

(1) The department shall submit claims for federal financial participation for the expenditures for the services described in subsection (e) that are allowable expenditures under federal law.

(2) The department shall submit any necessary materials to the federal government to provide assurances that claims for federal financial participation will include only those expenditures that are allowable under federal law. The department may utilize intergovernmental transfers or certified public expenditures to implement this section subject to the same provisions and requirements of section 2, and amendments thereto.

New Sec. 2. (a) The department of health and environment shall design and implement, in consultation and coordination with eligible providers as described in subsection (b), an intergovernmental transfer program relating to medicaid managed care, ground emergency medical transport services and those services provided by emergency medical services personnel at the emergency medical responder, emergency medical technician, advanced emergency medical technician and paramedic levels in the pre-stabilization and preparation for transport.

(b) A provider shall be eligible to transfer public funds to the state pursuant to this section only if the provider meets both of the following conditions in an applicable reporting period:

(1) Provides ground emergency medical transport services to medicaid managed care enrollees pursuant to a contract or other arrangement with a medicaid managed care plan; and

(2) is owned or operated by the state, a political subdivision or local government that employs or contracts with persons or providers who are licensed or permitted to provide emergency medical services in the state of Kansas, including hospitals and private entities to the extent permissible under federal law.

(c) To the extent intergovernmental transfers are voluntarily made by, and accepted from, an eligible provider described in subsection (b), or a governmental entity affiliated with an eligible provider, the department shall make increased capitation payments to applicable medicaid managed care plans.

(1) The increased capitation payments made pursuant to this section shall be, at a minimum, in actuarially determined amounts to the extent permissible under federal law.

(2) Except as provided in subsection (f), funds associated with intergovernmental transfers made and accepted pursuant to this section shall be used to fund additional payments to medicaid managed care plans.

(3) Medicaid managed care plans shall enter into contracts or contract amendments with eligible providers for the disbursement of increased capitation payments made pursuant to this section.

(d) The intergovernmental transfer program developed pursuant to this section shall be implemented on the date federal approval is obtained, and only to the extent intergovernmental transfers from the eligible provider, or the governmental entity with which it is affiliated, are provided for this purpose. To the extent permissible under federal law, the department shall implement the intergovernmental transfer program and increased capitation payments under this section on a retroactive basis as approved by the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services.

(e) Participation in the intergovernmental transfers under this section is voluntary on the part of the transferring entities for purposes of all applicable federal laws.

(f) This section shall be implemented without any additional expenditure from the state general fund. As a condition of participation under this section, each eligible provider as described in subsection (b), or the governmental entity affiliated with an eligible provider, shall agree to reimburse the department for any costs associated with implementing this section. Intergovernmental transfers described in this section are subject to an administration fee of up to 20% of the non-federal share paid to the department and shall be allowed to count as a cost of providing the services not to exceed 120% of the total amount.

(g) As a condition of participation under this section, medicaid managed care plans, eligible providers as described in subsection (b), and governmental entities affiliated with eligible providers shall agree to comply with any requests for information or similar data requirements imposed by the department for purposes of obtaining supporting documentation necessary to claim federal funds or to obtain federal approvals.

(h) This section shall be implemented only if and to the extent federal financial participation is available and is not otherwise jeopardized and any necessary federal approvals have been obtained.

(i) To the extent that the department determines that the payments made pursuant to this section do not comply with federal medicaid requirements, the department may return or not accept an intergovernmental transfer and may adjust payments pursuant to this section as necessary to comply with federal medicaid requirements.

(j) The state of Kansas and the department of health and environment shall implement whatever program the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services approves for use in Kansas under sections 1 and 2, and amendments thereto.

New Sec. 3. There is hereby established in the state treasury the community mental health center improvement fund. All moneys credited to the community mental health center improvement fund shall be used by the Kansas department for aging and disability services only for purposes related to community mental health centers. All expenditures from the community mental health center improvement fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary for aging and disability services or the secretary's designee.

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 40-3213 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-3213. (a) Every health maintenance organization and medicare provider organization subject to this act shall pay to the commissioner the following fees:

- (1) For filing an application for a certificate of authority, \$150;
- (2) for filing each annual report, \$50;
- (3) for filing an amendment to the certificate of authority, \$10.

(b) Every health maintenance organization subject to this act shall pay annually to the commissioner at the time such organization files its annual report, a privilege fee in an amount equal to ~~1% per annum~~ the following percentages of the total of all premiums, subscription charges or any other term ~~which that~~ may be used to describe the charges made by such organization to enrollees, ~~except 3.31% during the reporting period beginning January 1, 2015, and ending December 31, 2017, the privilege fee shall be 3.31%;~~ and 5.77% on and after January 1, 2018, ~~the privilege fee shall be 2%.~~ In such computations all such organizations shall be entitled to deduct therefrom any premiums or subscription charges returned on account of cancellations and dividends returned to enrollees. If the commissioner shall determine at any time that the application of the privilege fee, or a change in the rate of the privilege fee, would cause a denial of, reduction in or elimination of federal financial assistance to the state or to any health maintenance organization subject to this act, the commissioner is hereby authorized to terminate the operation of such privilege fee or the change in such privilege fee.

(c) For the purpose of insuring the collection of the privilege fee provided for by subsection (b), every health maintenance organization subject to this act and required by subsection (b) to pay such privilege fee shall at the time it files its annual report, as required by K.S.A. 40-3220, and amendments thereto, make a return, generated by or at the direction of its chief officer or principal managing director, under penalty of K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 21-5824, and amendments thereto, to the commissioner, stating the amount of all premiums, assessments and charges received by the health maintenance organization, whether in cash or notes, during the year ending on the last day of the preceding calendar year. Upon the receipt of such returns the commissioner of insurance shall verify ~~the same such returns~~ and assess reconcile the fees pursuant to subsection (f) upon such organization on the basis and at the rate provided ~~herein and such fees shall thereupon become due and payable in this section.~~

(d) Premiums or other charges received by an insurance company from the operation of a health maintenance organization subject to this act shall not be subject to any fee or tax imposed under the provisions of K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto.

(e) Fees charged under this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of ~~the state general fund, except during the period beginning July 1, 2015, and ending on June 30, 2018, such deposit shall be to the credit of the~~ medical assistance fee fund created by K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 40-3236, and amendments thereto.

(f) (1) On and after January 1, 2018, in addition to any other filing or return required by this section, each health maintenance organization shall submit a report to the commissioner on or before March 31 and September 30 of each year containing an estimate of the total amount of all premiums, subscription charges or any other term that may be used to describe the charges made by such organization to enrollees that the organization expects to collect during the current calendar year. Upon filing each March 31 report, the organization shall submit payment equal to ½ of the privilege fee that would be assessed by the commissioner for the current calendar year based upon the organization's reported estimate. Upon filing each September 30 report, the organization shall submit payment equal to the balance of the privilege fee that would be assessed by

the commissioner for the current calendar year based upon the organization's reported estimates.

(2) Any amount of privilege fees actually owed by a health maintenance organization during any calendar year in excess of estimated privilege fees paid shall be assessed by the commissioner and shall be due and payable upon issuance of such assessment.

(3) Any amount of estimated privilege fees paid by a health maintenance organization during any calendar year in excess of privilege fees actually owed shall be reconciled when the commissioner assesses privilege fees in the ensuing calendar year. The commissioner shall credit such excess amount against future privilege fee assessments. Any such excess amount paid by a health maintenance organization that is no longer doing business in Kansas and that no longer has a duty to pay the privilege fee shall be refunded by the commissioner from funds appropriated by the legislature for such purpose.

Sec. 5. K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 40-3236 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-3236. (a) There is hereby created in the state treasury the medical assistance fee fund. The commissioner of insurance shall remit to the state treasurer, in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, all moneys collected or received by the commissioner from health maintenance organizations and medicare provider organizations for the fees specified in K.S.A. 40-3213, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the medical assistance fee fund.

(b)(1) Moneys in the medical assistance fee fund shall be expended subject to the following priorities:

(A) First, to restore any reductions initiated during calendar year 2016 to provider reimbursement rates for state medicaid services;

(B) second, on July 1, 2017, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of \$3,500,000 to the community mental health center improvement fund created by section 3, and amendments thereto, and on July 1 of each year thereafter, or as soon after each such date as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of \$5,000,000 to the community mental health center improvement fund established by section 3, and amendments thereto;

(C) third, to transfer moneys to the Kansas newborn screening fund pursuant to K.S.A. 65-180, and amendments thereto; and

(D) fourth, if any moneys remain, for the purpose of medicaid medical assistance payments.

(2) All expenditures from the medical assistance fee fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's designee.

(c) On or before the 10th day of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the medical assistance fee fund interest earnings based on:

(1) The average daily balance of moneys in the medical ~~programs~~ assistance fee fund for the preceding month; and

(2) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding

month.

(d) The medical assistance fee fund shall be used for the purposes set forth in this act and for no other governmental purposes. It is the intent of the legislature that the fund shall remain intact and inviolate for the purposes set forth in this act, and moneys in the fund shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3722, 75-3725a and 75-3726a, and amendments thereto.

(e) The secretary of health and environment shall prepare and deliver to the legislature on or before the first day of each regular legislative session; a report ~~which~~ that summarizes all expenditures from the medical assistance fee fund, fund revenues and recommendations regarding the adequacy of the fund to support necessary medical assistance programs.

~~(f) The provisions of this section shall expire on July 1, 2018.~~

Sec. 6. K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 65-180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-180. The secretary of health and environment shall:

(a) Institute and carry on an intensive educational program among physicians, hospitals, public health nurses and the public concerning congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria and other genetic diseases detectable with the same specimen. This educational program shall include information about the nature of such conditions and examinations for the detection thereof in early infancy in order that measures may be taken to prevent intellectual disability or morbidity resulting from such conditions.

(b) Provide recognized screening tests for phenylketonuria, galactosemia, hypothyroidism and such other diseases as may be appropriately detected with the same specimen. The initial laboratory screening tests for these diseases shall be performed by the department of health and environment or its designee for all infants born in the state. Such services shall be performed without charge.

(c) Provide a follow-up program by providing test results and other information to identified physicians; locate infants with abnormal newborn screening test results; with parental consent, monitor infants to assure appropriate testing to either confirm or not confirm the disease suggested by the screening test results; with parental consent, monitor therapy and treatment for infants with confirmed diagnosis of congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria or other genetic diseases being screened under this statute; and establish ongoing education and support activities for individuals with confirmed diagnosis of congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria and other genetic diseases being screened under this statute and for the families of such individuals.

(d) Maintain a registry of cases including information of importance for the purpose of follow-up services to prevent intellectual disability or morbidity.

(e) Provide, within the limits of appropriations available therefor, the necessary treatment product for diagnosed cases for as long as medically indicated, when the product is not available through other state agencies. In addition to diagnosed cases under this section, diagnosed cases of maple syrup urine disease shall be included as a diagnosed case under this subsection. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual meets medicaid eligibility, such individuals' needs shall be covered under the medicaid state plan. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual is not medicaid eligible, but is below 300% of the federal

poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the United States department of health and human services, the department of health and environment shall provide reimbursement of between 50% to 100% of the product cost in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of health and environment. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual exceeds 300% of the federal poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the United States department of health and human services, the department of health and environment shall provide reimbursement of an amount not to exceed 50% of the product cost in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of health and environment.

(f) Provide state assistance to an applicant pursuant to subsection (e) only after it has been shown that the applicant has exhausted all benefits from private third-party payers, medicare, medicaid and other government assistance programs and after consideration of the applicant's income and assets. The secretary of health and environment shall adopt rules and regulations establishing standards for determining eligibility for state assistance under this section.

(g) (1) Except for treatment products provided under subsection (e), if the medically necessary food treatment product for diagnosed cases must be purchased, the purchaser shall be reimbursed by the department of health and environment for costs incurred up to \$1,500 per year per diagnosed child age 18 or younger at 100% of the product cost upon submission of a receipt of purchase identifying the company from which the product was purchased. For a purchaser to be eligible for reimbursement under this subsection, the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed child shall not exceed 300% of the poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the federal department of health and human services.

(2) As an option to reimbursement authorized under subsection (g)(1), the department of health and environment may purchase food treatment products for distribution to diagnosed children in an amount not to exceed \$1,500 per year per diagnosed child age 18 or younger. For a diagnosed child to be eligible for the distribution of food treatment products under this subsection, the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed child shall not exceed 300% of the poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the federal department of health and human services.

(3) In addition to diagnosed cases under this section, diagnosed cases of maple syrup urine disease shall be included as a diagnosed case under this subsection.

(h) The department of health and environment shall continue to receive orders for both necessary treatment products and necessary food treatment products, purchase such products, and shall deliver the products to an address prescribed by the diagnosed individual. The department of health and environment shall bill the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed patient for a pro-rata share of the total costs, in accordance with the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to this section.

(i) The secretary of health and environment shall adopt rules and regulations as needed to require, to the extent of available funding, newborn screening tests to screen for treatable disorders listed in the core uniform panel of newborn screening conditions recommended in the 2005 report by the American college of medical genetics entitled

"Newborn Screening: Toward a Uniform Screening Panel and System" or another report determined by the department of health and environment to provide more appropriate newborn screening guidelines to protect the health and welfare of newborns for treatable disorders.

(j) In performing the duties under subsection (i), the secretary of health and environment shall appoint an advisory council to advise the department of health and environment on implementation of subsection (i).

(k) The department of health and environment shall periodically review the newborn screening program to determine the efficacy and cost effectiveness of the program and determine whether adjustments to the program are necessary to protect the health and welfare of newborns and to maximize the number of newborn screenings that may be conducted with the funding available for the screening program.

(l) There is hereby established in the state treasury the Kansas newborn screening fund ~~which that~~ shall be administered by the secretary of health and environment. All expenditures from the fund shall be for the newborn screening program. All expenditures from the fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's designee. ~~Each month On July 1 of each year,~~ the director of accounts and reports shall determine the amount credited to the ~~state general medical assistance fee fund pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3213,~~ and amendments thereto, and shall transfer the estimated portion of such amount that is necessary to fund the newborn screening program for the ~~preceding month ensuing fiscal year~~ as certified by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's designee; to the Kansas newborn screening fund, except that such amount shall not exceed ~~the amount to be credited to the state general fund pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3213, and amendments thereto~~ \$2,500,000 in any one fiscal year.

Sec. 7. K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 40-3213, 40-3236 and 65-180 are hereby repealed. ";

Also on page 2, in line 7, by striking "Kansas register" and inserting "statute book";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; by striking all in line 2; in line 3, by striking all before the period and inserting "health and healthcare; providing for reimbursement to eligible providers for medicaid ground emergency medical transportation services; relating to health maintenance organizations; privilege fees; rate; disposition of moneys; extending the medical assistance fee fund; establishing the community mental health center improvement fund; amending K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 40-3213, 40-3236 and 65-180 and repealing the existing sections";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

CAROLYN MCGINN

RICK BILLINGER

LAURA KELLY

Conferees on part of Senate

TROY WAYMASTER

ERIN DAVIS

KATHY WOLFE MOORE

Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Waymaster, the conference committee report on **HB 2079** was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 101; Nays 18; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcalá, Alford, Arnberger, Aurland, Baker, Ballard, Becker, Bishop, Blex, Brim, Burroughs, Campbell, Carmichael, Clark, Clayton, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Crum, S., Curtis, E. Davis, Deere, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Elliott, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Gartner, Good, Hibbard, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Holscher, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Judd-Jenkins, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Koesten, Kuether, Lakin, Lewis, Lusk, Lusker, Markley, Mason, Mastroni, Miller, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Parker, F. Patton, Phelps, Phillips, Pittman, Proehl, Rafie, Rahjes, Ralph, Rooker, Ruiz, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Schroeder, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, S. Swanson, Terrell, Thimesch, Thompson, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Waymaster, Weber, C., Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, K. Williams, Wilson, Winn, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Awerkamp, Burris, B. Carpenter, Claeys, Garber, Hawkins, Helgerson, Houser, K. Jones, Landwehr, Osterman, R. Powell, Resman, Schwab, Sloan, Sutton, Tarwater, Vickrey.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Carlin, Henderson, Highland, Jacobs, Whitmer.

EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

MR. SPEAKER: I recognize the need to fully reimburse Medicaid providers, this isn't the way to do it. HMO's premiums will go up considerably. This is an unfair tax on people who already pay too much for health insurance. The HMOs will be priced out of the market and one company will be forced to unfairly pay other states and be less competitive, costing Kansas jobs. This is a vote to raise health insurance costs for Kansans. My constituents will know I voted to keep health insurance premiums low not voted them to be raised unfairly. Find another way to fund Medicaid. Mr. Speaker, I vote no on **HB 2079**. — SEAN TARWATER, KEVIN JONES, DANIEL R. HAWKINS

MR. SPEAKER: I vote No on **HB 2079** because the HMO premium tax increase will result in HMOs leaving the state. Restoring the 2016 4% cut to Medicaid providers is appropriate, but basing the availability of funds on a hope and a prayer that HMOs will stay when they cannot cover their costs and make a profit, is fiscally irresponsible. — TOM SLOAN

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House recessed until 4:00 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Schwab in the chair.

The House stood at ease until the sound of the gavel.

Speaker pro tem Schwab called the House to order.

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House recessed until 5:00 p.m.

LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Schwab in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hineman, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering **SB 19**.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MADAM PRESIDENT and MR. SPEAKER: Your committee on conference on House amendments to **SB 19** submits the following report:

Your committee on conference agrees to disagree and recommends that a new conference committee be appointed;

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

LARRY CAMPBELL

CLAY AURAND

Conferees on part of House

JIM DENNING

CAROLYN MCGINN

Conferees on part of Senate

On motion of Rep. Campbell the conference committee report on **SB 19** to agree to disagree, was adopted.

Speaker pro tem Schwab thereupon appointed Reps. Campbell, Aurand and Trimmer as second conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House recessed until 7:30 p.m.

EVENING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Schwab in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report to agree to disagree on **SB 19**, and has appointed Senators Denning, McGinn and Hensley as second conferees on the part of the Senate.

REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HB 2079 reported correctly reengrossed June 4, 2017.

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Monday, June 5, 2017.

BECKIE HENDRICKS, JENNY HAUGH, JULIA WERNER, *Journal Clerks.*
SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk.*

